
STATE OF NEVADA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

AGING AND DISABILITY SERVICES DIVISION 

Administrative Office 

3416 Goni Road, D-132 

Carson City, NV 89706 

(775) 687-4210       Fax (775) 687-0574 

adsd@adsd.nv.gov 
 

 ________________________ 

Aging and Disability Services Division 
Administrative Office 

3416 Goni Road, D-132 
Carson City, NV 89706 

(775) 687-4210 ~ (775) 687-0574 

 
  
    

BRIAN SANDOVAL 
Governor 

ROMAINE GILLILAND 
Director 

 
JANE GRUNER 

Administrator 
 

MINUTES 
 

Name of Organization:  Nevada Commission on Autism Spectrum Disorders 
          
Date and Time of Meeting:  December 12, 2014 
     2:45 p.m.  
 
Carson City:    Aging and Disability Services Division 
     3416 Goni Road, D-132 
     Carson City, NV 89706 
 
 

I. Ms. Crandy called the meeting for the Commission on Autism Spectrum 
Disorders to order at 2:48 p.m. 
 
Members Present:  Jan Crandy, Mary Liveratti, Korri Ward, Shannon Crozier 
 
Members Absent:  Keri Altig 
 
Guests:  Julie Ostrovsky, Thomas Kapp, Scott Harrington 
 
Staff Present:  Carol Reitz 
 
A quorum was declared. 
 

II.  Public Comment (No action may be taken upon a matter raised under public comment period 

unless the matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an action item) 
 
There was no public comment. 
 

III.  Approval of Minutes from October 21, 2014 and October 29, 2014 Meetings  
      

This item was tabled until the next meeting.  
 

IV.       Discussion and Approval of Letter to Governor Sandoval to Support Funding 
Agency Budget Request for Autism 
    Jan Crandy, Chair 



 

2 
 

 
Ms. Crandy asked the Commission if they had reviewed the letter that was 
drafted and if there were any changes to it.  Ms. Ward asked about the line 
that read “treatment prior to 46 months.”  Ms. Crandy said that there is other 
research that states earlier treatment as well. 
 
Ms. Crandy asked Ms. Ward if she would like the word “early” removed from 
the line that read “It is critical that early access to treatment is available to 
every child with ASD,” so that it would apply to all individuals starting 
treatment at all ages.  Ms. Ward said she would like the word removed. 
 
Mr. Harrington asked why there were no funding amounts.  Ms. Crandy said 
the Commission is asking the Governor to fund the agency’s budget request 
that was submitted. 
 
Ms. Liveratti asked about listing both Aging and Disabilities Services Division 
and Department of Health and Human Services.  She suggested adding 
Department of Health Care Financing and Policy to include Medicaid or 
deleting Aging and Disabilities Services Division.  Ms. Crandy said she will 
delete “Aging and Disabilities Services Division.”  
 
Ms. Crandy told the Committee that she will add everyone’s signature to the 
letter.  She will mail the letter to the Governor so it will be received by 
Monday.  She summarized the following changes to be made: deleting “Aging 
and Disabilities Services Division,” deleting the word “early” before access, 
and defining the ABA acronym. 
 
Ms. Crozier made a motion to accept the letter with the changes noted.  Ms. 
Ward seconded the motion.  The motion passed.       
 

V. Public Comment 
(No action may be taken upon a matter raised under public comment period unless the matter itself has been 
specifically included on an agenda as an action item. Comments will be limited to three minutes per person. Persons 
making comment will be asked to begin by stating their name for the record and to spell their last name and provide 
secretary with written comments.) 

 
Ms. Crandy said Melissa Woodbury is carrying a bill for autism.  She said one 
part is addressing outcome measure that is a test similar to the Vineland.  
She said it would be a good measure if treatments and school district 
education is working as well as how employment-ready the children are when 
they graduate high school.  The other piece is children having access to 
treatment upon a failed screening and having children put on the waiting list 
for ATAP once they fail a screening.   
 
James Ohrenschall will be a co-sponsor of the bill.  Ms. Crandy said there is 
someone else carrying the bill that requires employees at Job Connect to 
have specific training on autism that are job coaching. 
 



 

3 
 

Ms. Crandy said BDR -67 has been discussed and she thinks the bill should 
not be in play.  She asked that it be put on the next agenda to be voted on.  
She added BDR -67 is the bill that removes the CABI (Certified Autistic 
Behavior Interventionist) and requires interventionists to receive the national 
RBT (Registered Behavior Technician) credential instead.  It also asks for the 
removal of the $36,000 per year cap on benefits for services related to 
applied behavior analysis treatment. 
 
Ms. Ward asked if we know how many individuals are being served 
appropriately by insurance.  Ms. Crandy said they don’t know how many. 
 
Ms. Ostrovsky suggested that the Commission should not lobby on it.  Ms.  
Crandy said that someone else can open up the bill and lobby on it. 
 
Mr. Kapp asked about the rural piece of the bill.  Ms. Crandy said it would ask 
ATAP to fund mobile diagnostic clinics in the rural areas.  She added maybe 
the Commission can get it added onto another bill.  She said writing the letter 
to the Governor is so ATAP can continue to be funded and the children on the 
waitlist will get picked up as well and to ensure Medicaid starts in 2015. 
 
Ms. Ward asked if anyone can open up the bill and Ms. Crandy said that is 
why it needs to be taken out.  Ms. Liveratti said she didn’t know how much 
control the Commission had over the bill.  She asked if the Commission had 
made a recommendation for the bill and Ms. Crandy said yes.   
 
Ms. Liveratti asked if they got rid of the autism insurance mandate, if they are 
still required to cover autism under the ACA (Affordable Care Act).  Ms. 
Crandy said it didn’t cost the state any extra money because the state had the 
mandate.    
 
Ms. Crandy asked to reconfirm that the Commission does not want to go 
forward with BDR -67.  It will be added to the agenda to be voted on at the 
next meeting.        
 
Ms. Liveratti informed the Commission that she still had not gotten a quote 
from Ben Kieckhefer.   
 
Ms. Crandy asked Mr. Harrington if he had anything to add.  Mr. Harrington 
said he would suggest looking at the data on the number of kids and the 
amount of money to make the decision. 
 
Ms. Crandy said there are issues with the insurance coverage.  She said not 
all insurance companies are paying for treatment adequately. 
 
Mr. Harrington asked if there is strong lobbying against the insurance bill.  Ms. 
Crandy said yes, they don’t want to remove the cap.  Ms. Liveratti added they 



 

4 
 

would like to have the mandate taken off completely.  Ms. Ward said she 
would like to see a viable option for parents for insurance coverage for 
autism. 
 
Ms. Crandy said she wants to get protection but there is no guarantee.  There 
are a lot of supporters but she is not sure if there are enough supporters. 
There are a lot of new people at Legislation.     
 

VI. Adjournment 
 
Ms. Crandy adjourned the meeting at 3:20 p.m. 
 
 

 
 


